NO Pez Care 3.9
IN THE	SUPREME COURT OF FLORI SID J. WHITE
W.C. REEVES, Petitioner, vs.	FEB 18 1987 CLERK, SUPREME COURT By CASE NO. 69,548
STATE OF FLORIDA, Respondent.))) _)

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

CHRISTOPHER S. QUARLES ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER 112 Orange Avenue, Suite A Daytona Beach, Florida 32014 Phone: 904/252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the Appellant and Respondent was the Appellee in the District Court of Appeals, Fifth District of the State of Florida. In this brief, the Respondent will be referred to as "the State" and the Petitioner will be referred to as he appears before this Honorable Court.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

On July 25, 1985, the state filed an information charging the Petitioner, W.C. Reeves, with the offense of carrying a concealed firearm in violation of Section 790.02, Florida Statutes (1985). (R13)

The arrest report indicates that Officer Clinger responded to a call where he encountered two black females who reported an attempted sexual assault by two black males, known to them only as Billy and James. One of these black males reportedly pointed a handgun at them during the incident. Officer Clinger stopped two black males matching the physical description of the perpetrators and, during a pat-down, found a .25 handgun in one's pocket. (R9-11)

Petitioner entered a plea of guilty to the crime charged pursuant to plea negotiations. (R26-28) The State agreed to recommend a pre-sentence investigation and agreed and not to file charges involving possession of a firearm by a convicted felon.

Petitioner agreed to forfeit the firearm and agreed not to own firearms as a condition of probation. Petitioner also agreed to substance abuse counseling. (R26-27)

A sentencing guidelines scoresheet was prepared resulting in a recommended nonstate prison sanction. (R30-31) The trial court adjudicated Petitioner guilty and sentenced him to two years community control with an accompanying condition that he serve 51 weeks in the county jail. This sentence was suspended for a period of 90 days and the trial court allowed Petitioner credit for 45 days previously served. (R1-7,30-36)

- 2 -

On September 25, 1986, the District Court of Appeal, Fifth District, held as follows:

> PER CURIAM: We affirm on the ground that community control is a nonstate prison sanction within the meaning of that term in the sentencing guidelines. See <u>Mitchell v. State</u>, 463 So.2d 416 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985); Davis v. State, 461 So.2d 1003 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984); Louzon v. State, 460 So.2d 551 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984). Contra Mestas v. STate, 484 So.2d 612 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986). AFFIRMED.

<u>Reeves v. State</u>, 495 So.2d 238 (Fla. 5th DCA 1986)(<u>See</u> Appendix attached hereto.)

A Notice to Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction, based upon express and direct conflict was filed on October 24, 1986. This Court accepted jurisdiction by an Order dated January 23, 1987. This brief follows.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The District Court of Appeal, Fifth District, was incorrect in holding that community control is a first cell sanction within the meaning of that term under the guidelines. The Sentencing Guidelines Commission has recently expanded the committee note to Rule 3.701(d)(13) by clarifying the intent of the commission that community control is not to be considered as a nonstate prison sanction under the guidelines.

ARGUMENT

COMMUNITY CONTROL IS NOT A FIRST CELL (ANY NON-STATE PRISON) SANCTION WITHIN THE MEANING OF THAT TERM IN THE SENTENC-ING GUIDELINES.

The First and Fifth District Courts of Appeal have consistently held that community control is a nonstate prison sanction within the meaning of that term in the sentencing guidelines. <u>See e.g. Mitchell v. State</u>, 463 So.2d 416 (Fla. 1st DCA 1985); <u>Davis v. State</u>, 461 So.2d 1003 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984); <u>Louzon v. State</u>, 460 So.2d 551 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984). The simple rationale of these cases rested on the conclusion that community control simply is not a state prison sanction. <u>Mestas v. State</u>, 484 So.2d 612 (Fla. 2d DCA 1986), concluded that the sentencing guidelines category of any nonstate prison sanction does not include community control.

Petitioner submits that this issue has been clearly resolved in his favor as evidenced by the <u>Florida Bar Re: Rules</u> <u>of Crim.Proc</u>. 482 So.2d 311 (Fla. 1985). The sentencing guidelines commission petitioned this Court to adopt an amendment to Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure 3.701 and 3.988. Among the amendments was an expansion of the committee note to 3.701(d)(13) by adding the following sentence:

> "Community control is not an alternative sanction from the recommended range of any nonstate prison sanction unless the provisions of Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.701(d)(11) are applied." This revision is intended to clarify the intent of the commission that community control is not to be considered as a nonstate prison sanction under the guidelines. (emphasis added).

The Florida Bar Re: Rules of Crim.Proc., supra at 312. It is therefore clear that the commission intended that community control not be considered a nonstate prison sanction under the guidelines.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons expressed herein, Petitioner respectfully requests that this Honorable Court reverse the District Court's decision holding that community control is a nonstate prison sanction within the meaning of that term in the sentencing guidelines.