No Kegnest Case

IN THE SUPREME COURT STATE OF FLORIDA

W.C. REEVES,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 69,548

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

KEVIN KITPATRICK CARSON ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL 125 N. Ridgewood Avenue Fourth Floor Daytona Beach, Florida 32014 (904) 252-1067

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The term "any non-state prison sanction" in sentencing guidelines applies to community control, as community control is not a state prison sanction. Community control is a non-incarcerative alternative to a prison sanction. Thus, community control is a proper sanction to be imposed under sentencing guidelines category of "any non-state prison sanction", and does not constitute a departure therefrom.

POINT ON APPEAL

WHETHER COMMUNITY CONTROL CONSTITUTES A "NON-STATE PRISON SANCTION" WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE SENTENCING GUIDE-LINES RULES.

ARGUMENT

Petitioner entered a plea of guilty to carrying a concealed firearm and was placed on two years community control, with the special condition that he serve 51 weeks in the county jail. Under his sentencing guidelines scoresheet, petitioner was eligible for "any non-state prison sanction." (R 30-31): Fla. R. Crim. P. 3.988(h). The Fifth District Court of Appeal upheld the community control provision of petitioner's sentence relying upon Mitchell v. State, 463 So.2d 416 (Fla 1st DCA 1985), Davis v. State, 461 So.2d 1003 (Fla. 1st DCA 1984), and its own decision in Louzon v. State, 460 So.2d 551 (Fla. 5th DCA 1984). In Louzon, the Fifth District Court of Appeal reasoned:

". . . 'community control' does not encompass incarceration in state prison and therefore is properly classified as a 'non-state prison sanction'. See, §§ 948.10(1), 948.001(1), Florida Statutes (1983) . . ."

460 So. 2d at 552.

This same conclusion has been reached by the First District Court of Appeal in <u>Mitchell</u> and <u>Davis</u>, supra. In <u>Mitchell</u>, the court reasoned:

The terms "any non-state prison sanction" clearly apply to community control, as community control simply is not a state prison sanction. Community control is defined as a form of intensive, supervised custody in the community, including surveillance on weekends and holidays, administered

by officers with restricted caseloads, and, further, defined as an individualized program in which the freedom of an offender is restricted within the community, home, or noninstitutional residential placement and specific sanctions are imposed and enforced. Section 948.001(1), Florida Statutes (1983). Section 948.01(4) states that the court may place an offender in a community control program, if it appears to the court that probation is an unsuitable dispositional alternative to imprisonment. Section 948.10(1) states that community control "shall offer the courts and the Parole and Probation Commission an alternative, community-based method to punish an offender in lieu of incarceration . . . " (emphasis added). Clearly, community control is not to be regarded as a state prison sanction. Rather, it is apparent to us that community control is a nonprison custodial alternative that was developed by the legislature to alleviate prison overcrowding. See Chapter 83-131 Fla. Laws, section 2. Accordingly, we find and hold that community control is a proper sanction to be imposed under the sentencing guidelines category of "any nonstate prison sanction." (footnote omitted).

463 So.2d at 418. The <u>Mitchell</u> court further stated that the fact that the guidelines specifically listed community control as an alternative to incarceration in the second guidelines cell should not preclude community control from being used as a dispositional alternative under the first guideline cell of "any non-state prison sanction." 463 So.2d 15 418, n.2.

The state acknowledges that recent amendments to the Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure, effective July 1, 1986, reflect a a position contrary to that presented herein. The Florida Bar Re: Rules of Criminal Procedure, 482 So.2d 311 (Fla. 1985) (amending committee note (d)(13)). However, the state urges this court to consider this issue in light of the First District's reasoning in Mitchell and Davis, supra, as well as the Fifth

District in Louzon, supra.

Accordingly, the state urges this honorable court to resolve the conflict between the districts holding that community control does constitute a "non-state prison sanction" and may be imposed by a trial court without providing clear and convincing reasons where the defendant's sentencing scoresheet places him in the first guidelines cell calling for "any non-state prison sanction."

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, respondent respectfully prays this honorable court affirm the decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in all respects.